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Celedonia, Wisconsin, is the second oldest Bohemizan .
settlement in America. The first Rohemians here had drudging

 teginninzs. The section was then inhabited pricipally hyv

Frznech, Germens, Welsh and Americans =nd was entirely forested.

The southern boundary is the City of Racine and the Town
of Mt. Plesasant; on the east i1s Lake Michigan; on the north

iz Milwaukes County snd on the west is the Town of Reymond.

From ithe nmorth about four miles west of Leke Michigan runs Root
River inte Caledonia =nd runs scuth about four miles, then turns
to the sast about two miles,ag2in turas south intoc Racine where
it empties into Lake Michigan. Into this turning, then heavilw
wooded, between Rooi River on the west, the Lske on the zast,
Milwaukee County on the north and Racine on the south settled
the firsi Bohemians. They settled mostlw around the Milwaukee
Foad Ifrom the Four mile +to the Seven Mile Rosd. This secticn

.Aater cbhtained the name of Tabor. In the year 1350 Bohemians

ihat arrived in Caledoniz, were from Luze in Chrudim, Jchn Posler
and Vaclav Andrle. Fosler lived oh the Townline Road betwesn

the Flve and 2ix Mile Reads, and Andrle lived where now lives

J. W. Mikulegky. John Fozler in the wear 1851 returned to <he

old countrv but scon returned to America ané settled in the

stzle of Missourit In the year 1851 the®came Jokn Mazanek,
Danizl Stritesky, and John Zitka. Zitka was a whedlwright by
trade and conducted a wheel shop on the Milwaukee Road meny
years until the vear 1878 when he Aisd.

In the wyear 1352 ctherBohemians came te Zalsdonisz: John
Mikalesxv, J. Splichal and Kremenak, whe =11 died in the year
£52 of cholera in about the seme week. Then camsz Anton LGregor,
anna ¥lofanda, widow and children, Jossch Stritesky, Vaclav
Froulik, John Houdek, John Kutina, Frand and John Mudroch,
Joseph Kszbriel, Joseph Velfe, Mendlik, Novotny, Mikiles Danek.

In the vear 1853 the following arrived: Frand Trzvnicek-Nechuta,
Frand Hechuts, Frank Bynak, Frank Toll, Joseph Folzk, John Polak,
J. Kovar, Pavel Smerchek, Simon Smerchelk, Joseph Ztritecky,

- _Btransky, Zamecnik, znd Anton Filip.

Later in the year 1254 came John Elias, John Resival,
voseph Uhlir, Joseph Hudrle, John Mete], Joseph Jenista, Anton
Movak, John Novak, J. Marek, John Svee, Frank, John &nd Joseph
Loerenec, John Hudriik, Vaclav Raiman, John Horsk, vaclay Trucha,
Jeseph Splicghl, Martin X1ima, Vanbouch, Josaph Roudek, Jose
¥isd, Supleta, Machacek, Kadlec, Machal, Hubalek, Siama, Fulda,
Vitouska, ¥laofac.

Socn after came Joseph Kubik, Frank Kubik, Jehm peterka,
Joseph Lucas, John Tworak, Frank Fridich, John Makovsky, Joseth
Smetansa, Jnsegﬁ Hrbitovsky, Frank Pevlis, ¥Yaclav Rusek, Josdoh
Dostal, JohnMilkulecky, Joseph Mikulecky, John ‘Pulkrabek, Andrlilsc,
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Joseph Fetura, Vaclav Petura, Anten Evspil, Zitka, Jiri Bouska,
Joseph Bouska, Hasak, Xroupa, Peklo, Dvoracek, Jossph Svanda,
Joseph Stepan, Frank Bouska, Zenisek, Kuchynka, John Wikan and
many other Bohewmians, Few came to relatives, others to friends.
Some moved to other states. There are not meny States where
there are no Bohemians who formerly were mot in Bohemian Caledemia.

The oldest living Bohemian iz Vincent Smerchelk who is moTe

than 24.

Jehn Elizs btrought with him substantial property. He bought
himself a fine farm on the Milwamkze Foad, Tive and a half
miles frem the ecity of Racins, He was a great nationzlist and
the Bahemisns ran to nim with their trouble, He was good
hearted znd sociable. In the wear 1360 ns opened 2 saloon and
general store. 1In the Year 1872 he organized & socisly of the
Sohemian residants. The society was named Tabor, He died in
they year 1B7S.

——— __ _In tha yezr 1854 there wss established the Tirst Eopitemian

business by V. Masak, almost exsctly where iz now Mr. Charles—
Kaplan on the Milwaukee Road. After a vear and a ®alf he sold

“he business te Websr and R. ¥lofanda who ran it to the vear

19685, o Moravec-ran it until 1873 when The business turned

out, and wes never rebuilt. In the wvear 1887 there was established
by Sohm Petura a saloon and business on the TFive Mile Road.

He zlso sold sgricultural implements.

The beginnings of the Tiest settlers were Very trying.
Bonemians bought mostly wooded lands, so that ther cculé cut
wood &nd so provide livelikeood for the Family. The glearing
of lends from =tumps was so much work that grain was vlanted
hetween the stumps. The man who had 2 plece of cleared landg,
gid well. So far as cleering the woods, it was much work.
cometimes it was hard to sell it. Hard wood was whesled to
Escine and it brought some flour or some goods; of money there
was no talk. Wonev ordinarily was very uncertain, since
farmers could scarcely get from their work enough to pey taxes
end other sxpenses. Mat wood then brought $1 to $1.50 PET ’
cord, mavple $.75 to 51.25 delivered to town, other soft woods
the farmers had to pull out, put in a pile, and ourn so the
lands could be clesred.

The roads were primitive. They were cnly cut between
stumps. When it wes wet,swamps were cutl and then a wagon
ren inte a root and often the wagon was brocken. Where there
was & large swemp , round logs were eut and laicd side by side
so it made an uneven floor. Riding over such a road was not
pleasant. Later when the Wilwaukse HRoad was paved, these logs
were found. Dreft animzls were all oxeni thers were no horsss.
vaTk was done entirely by oxen, driven to Racine to Market
square where farmers crove with lcads of wood, hey, grain, =
potatoss, and other vegetables. Thers wersa at times as many
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wagons as there are now sutomcbiles. The worst was when the
farmer could not sell his wood; he had to unload it somewhere
and rice home.

The Tirst Bohemiang in Calecdeonia who bought horses was
John Mikan in the vear 1855. Shortly afiter, other Bohemians
tought horsss. Then in the wvear 1854 when the Chiecago NWorth-
western Bailroad was built and they usged a large amount of weod
_and they burned thenonly wood and not coal like todav. Wood
s0ld well. It rose in wvalue from 3¢ te %5 a cord. Land also
rose in value. Formerly it was from $5 to £10 an acre, then
it rose from 350 to %480 per acre. The company bouzht much
wood. The fammers brought 1t to the County Line where they
piled it two corde wide and two high in two piles from the
County Line to the Seven Mile Road, which mace over one hundred
thousand cords af wood. About the wear 18570 the company stoppad
burning wood and began to burn cosl 2nd did not buy wood.
Evervone at that time was astonished how the woods had disarcpeared.
Nevertheless the farmers clezared their-lapd from stumps so thay
could grow wheat. The wood that was 1=t was then seld Lo the
guarry at Ives and at the Rapids. Alter the cutting of ihe
woods znd the clearing of stumrs the farmers began to buy farm
machinery. - '

. Theffirst machine John Resival bought in the wear 18F1 named
Fliwy. ‘The first threshker was bought by Daniel Stritesiy in
the year 1852. It was driven by tread power, btut was without
a fanning mill. In the wvear 1IgF5 John Elias bought a thresher
already ur te date and he charged five centsper btushel For
wheat, g£ix cents for rve, four cents for barlew, iwe cents for
oats, inc twelve centz for flar. '

Trn the wvear 1881 there arasze the desire for sfucation.
On the suggestion of Mr, Frank Yracka thers was organiszed
"Slovanska Lipa" or the third of Mareh. The pplirosze of the PR Poeg
association was education, helping in assceiation,and the
defenss of the Bohemian nation and their interests. The Tirst
president was Daniel Stritesky, John Miluleclky was vicew
rresident, John Elias, treasurer, Frank Smerchek, sseretary ,
and Karel Travnicek-¥echuta, correspondent. On April 7,1861,
it was decided thet Frank Mracek obizain Bohemian newspaper
edited in Switzerland under the name “Cech". This was the
first that helped reading in Caledonia. 0On September 15,1361,
it was decided that the national newspaper, of whatever name,
sheuld be moved to Racine at the expense of Slovenske Lipy,
amounting te $£5.00, so that'Warod Noviny" be Jjoined with the
Recine "Slovanum Amerikanskym" and open offices under the
name of "SlavieV,

Tn the yezr 1862 Slovanske Lipa began thinking of erecting
& Bchemian school, but there arcse great oppesition, and the
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lodes wes almost broksn up. Lt was divided inte twe factions.
The emaller group proposed.-te build only Bohemian school.

Tme octher group wanted a religicus school. TDaniel Stritesky
offered the land where the school now stands. On May 15, 153&Z,
the following commitee was elected: Frank Fridrich, president;
Paul Smerchek, treasurer: Frank Smerchek, secretary; and Joseph
Smetana, librarian; after this a mew school bailding was soon
started, Logs were contributed, and they built, shingles,
windows, and others gave willipg comtritutions. They puilt

the achool and the first meeting in the new scheol was held

on. Januarv &, 1864. Scon after teaching bewan; ths first
teacher was Karel Travnicek-Nechuta, whe taught until 1867,
without pay. ThenJohn Sebotka taught. From 30 to 20 children
=ttended this Eohemian school. Toward the end of the year 1820
the pofet J. V. Sladek taught here for severgl months. He
tranzlated Longfellow's "Hiawatha" intc Bohemian.

?ecause the Bohemians who were here then and those who
pame later were reared in brotherheod, they resolved that
they also should have their own lodre of Bohemian Brothers.
after this decision on June 4, 1865, there was started a
veluntary subscription for a Bohemian lodee, which Prought
%517 .27, and John Eiias dedicated an acre of lapd. They imm-
sdiztcly bepan to_build a2nd by Decemper 1, 1865, it was completed.
The preacher was Frank B, Zdrubek, whe later was edifor of
WSvornost®, After him Frarnk Stindl preached for many Yegrs.
Then it siowly dwindled until it entirsly ceased and now trers
is ne chuych.

- PuEs

The lodge "Oswveta” was (orgenized F@hruatg 14, 187E.
The Erinc‘ es of which werey 1ibzmtvy of thousht gnd education.
The Tounéing memtership vere the fallowing: Frank Bynak, S5r.
Frank Fwnak, Jr..H. PEE&G, Jakub Peklo, Josoth Stri;Eskv,
Joseph Danek, Jiri Bovska, Jeseph Stepan, Frand Stritesky,
Frznk Nethuta, Vine Smerchek, John Makovslky, Fran@ Rousks,
Jakob KEreoups. This lodeme attained it®rifirose for zZrafually FURFesSS
there arase stzte lodeges of liberalminded and in time thew
joined Slovenske Lipa(azlso liberalminded} intc one strong and
powergful! lodze, which today supports a Rehemian Schogl and
has two fine liéraries,”slcvenska Lipa" =2md "0 sveta" in Caledonie.

Scon after Wovember 1877, Bohemisn catholicism died in
Caledoniz. On accovnt of imrassable roads and poor weather
thev could not drive for a priest te serve them, and when
‘burial was necessarTy, the priest denied burial in a cstholic
cemetery. Thev had to take the dead heme and then hurial was
nad in the town cemetery irn Caledonia. Here the &trongest
Bohemiande said: "This alsc awaijite ug"., A weeting was calles
en April 7, 1877, for the purpose of prowviding for a Bohemian
Cemetery. Eleven atiended. .John Jenista was elected president,
Earel Travnicek-Nechuta, secretary. It was rlgclided to Tu
four acrzs of high gronnd from Mateje Jemista at $45 per acre.
surveying, cleaming and road malhking was made withoutl cowmpen-
sation. Flots are 2001.--by-20 ft. Tn the same year Josefina
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lakoveka, nes Erivska, was buried; ske was very young. In

the wear 1878 it was decided to erect a large monument in the
center of the cemeterv in honor of the nation and the Pohemians
of Caledoniz. A subscription was had, to which the most was
given by D. Stritesky, $100. The next vear the momument was
erected at the cost of 3400. On June 22, 1872, there was neld
a dedication ceremony of the monument at the cemelzry. This
wae abeut the larcest dedication bv the Bohamians which '
Caledenia ever witnessed, From the first burial to the Tresent
it has greatly chanped. Almost a1l the oripinal Tichasers

of plots now rest there,on soil prepared by them. The cemetery
iz now almost entirelv tlanted with flowers and under the small
gardens rest some of our loved ones or Triends. The cematary
is the pride of Caledonia Bohemians.

The wounger and best known Bohsmians in Caledonia began
to sugeest that alsc tody development in Caledena should be
encouraped and thereupon there was a gathering on lMarch 15, 1820,
to organize Jednota Sokolska under-the name of Tel. Jednotza
Sokol Tabhor.  The ZSoksls worTRed enthusizstieally and soon
there was thought of builéing Csska gine. Tt was the thougnt
of all the brotners to help, so in the year 1824 they erscted
it with a stige in =zddition, which serves Caledonia Bohemians
as a national home,. ' :

So far as the farmers are concernad, most of them raised
wheat 2nd other grain for the markst. At that tims many hesan
to reise strawberries and othsr greens. Later everyocne raised
strawbarries, and the farmers helped themselves greatly through
the sale¢ of sirawberriss. Tmen rrices geclinsd and slraw-
berry reising alsc declined. Later thew raised cabbhags &nd
suger beets, The reising of cabiare reachec larze - oportions,
so that the Bohemisns filled nearly & thousand railroac cars
s year. But this too lowersd, sometimes by small orons,
again by poor prices., The beiter farwers gave maTe attention
to czitle raising and the sale of milk, which paid them Tatter.
They tuilt good tarns &nd stalls, whers czttle had everything
somiorietle, such as light, ventilation and cleanlinzss; Znd-
21l medern necessary sgaipment. Almost &11 now heve 32108,

_ The Bohemians who had the first autamotiles were John
Visa, Frank Rynak, Joseph Havlie, and Joserh Feterka. MNow
meet of thkem have one or two sntomcochiles.

Fetruary 15, 1892 was founded the lodme "Ceska Caletonis
#182 C. S. P. S. Mestings are held each month in the Bohemian
achool. : .

when the Werld Yar bhroke out, the Bohemians of Calesdoniz
took sctive notice that ocur Bohemian” fatherlzand also socuzht
freedom since-Bohemians over the whole world vorvked for
Pohemian freedom, TIn Caledonia in the vear 1917 whs organized
"reskeho Marodniho Sdruzeni? To this purposs the Sokols were
loaned the use of Ceska Sine and here all Bohamian lodges Jjoinad
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to work for the old fatherland. It lasted DIut little ovar

twg wezrs. In that shert time there was gathered for natiomal
purposes apmual parties =znd tazaars and otherwise, the sum of
about ©2,472, Tt was almost untelievalle how ihe peoyle offersd
contritutions for Naredni Sdruzani.
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